
Agenda continued on next page 

                        Agenda 
           Linn-Benton Loop Board 
 
 
 
Date:  Tuesday, November 28, 2017 
Time:  3:00 – 5:00 pm 
Location: OCWCOG Upstairs Conference Room, 1400 Queen Ave, SE Albany OR 
Phone:  541-497-7311, Code 841 
 
 
1. Call to Order          Hal Brauner, Chair 

 
2. Agenda Review          Chair 

 
3. Public Comment          Chair 

 
4. Minutes of August 29, 2017 Meeting (Attachment A)            Chair 

Action Requested: Approval of August 29, 2017 Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Loop Scope Service Analysis Update (Attachment B)         Lee Lazaro 
Action Requested: Informational  
 
Loop TAC Chair, Lee Lazaro will provide a Draft Loop Service Analysis Scope of Work.  
 

6. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) (Attachment C)    Phil Warnock 
Action Requested: Review and Approval of Memorandum of Agreement  
 
Staff will provide a draft MOA for review and consideration of approval. Per the 
Intergovernmental Agreement establishing the governance of the Linn-Benton Loop transit 
service; “the Board and the City of Albany need to develop a memorandum of agreement 
sufficient to formalize agreements between the Parties, the Board, Albany, or member 
entities of the MPOs related to funding, operations, and ongoing expectations for continuing 
the Loop service.”  
 

7. Budget and Ridership Reports (Attachment D1 & D2)               Chris Bailey 
Action Requested: Informational 
 
Chris Bailey, Albany City Transit Staff will review the Linn-Benton Loop Budget for FY2017-
18 and Ridership Reports for FY 2016-17. 
 

8. Next Meeting and Future Agenda Items                Chair 
Action Requested: Discussion only 
 

9. Other Business          Chair 
 

10. Adjourn                      Chair 
 
Next meeting date, Tuesday, February 26, 2018 



LINN-BENTON LOOP BOARD 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, August 29, 2017 
3:00 – 5:00 pm 

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 
Upstairs Conference Room / 1400 Queen Ave. SE, Albany 

Board Members and Ex-Officio: Roger Nyquist, Hal Brauner, and Bruce Clemetson 
Staff Members:  Barry Hoffman, Ali Bonakdar, Phil Warnock, and Emma Chavez 
Guests Present:  Arla Miller, Deborah Ensor, and Lee Lazaro 

TOPIC DISCUSSION DECISION / 
CONCLUSION 

1. Call to Order and
Introductions

The meeting was called 
to order at 3:03 pm by 
the Chair, Hal Bruner.  

Introductions were 
conducted.  

2. Agenda Review Chair Brauner asked if there were any additions or corrections to 
the agenda.  

There were no changes 
to the agenda. 

3. Public Comment There were no public 
comments.  

4. Minutes of May 30,
2017 meeting

Consensus by the Loop 
Board to approve the 
May 30, 2017 meeting 
minutes as written. 

5. Loop Scope Service
Analysis Update

Phil Warnock reported that the Loop TAC has had conversations 
of what changes to the Loop Scope Service Analysis may look like 
with the passing of HB 2017. He noted that Lee and Mark put 
together a memo that was emailed out to the Board and TAC.  

Consensus from the 
Loop Board for staff to 
develop a Scope of 

Attachment A

1



 
Lee Lazaro went on to review the memo. Lazaro noted that the 
main topic of conversation at the TAC meetings has been the 
Scope Service Analysis. Lazaro stated that for many years the 
Linn-Benton Loop has discussed the need to assess structural 
options for the delivery of optimal regional public transit 
connecting services; including joint applications from Linn and 
Benton County which, unfortunately not funded.   
 
Lazaro stated that with AAMPO’s budgeted $28 thousand in 
FY16-17 UPWP for a Service Analysis Scope of Work (SOW), the 
TAC reviewed the SOW and discussed local TDP developments. 
With the passing of HB 2017 and an increase in public transit 
programs, the TAC saw an opportunity for the SOW to take on a 
new and higher scale direction than originally indented with 
additional funds provided.  
 
Lee went on to review the TAC’s August 8th discussion and 
recommendation per the memo distributed:  
 
Noting very clearly that the rules/regulations of HB 2017 have not 
yet been developed; the HB 2017-required advisory committee 
has not yet been developed, and the rules for the advisory 
committee have not been approved; and there has not yet been a 
preliminary discussion with any policy boards for discussion 
purposes, the TAC made some general “working assumptions” 
(naturally, subject to later adjustment by the Board and/or the 
political processes set forth in HB2017):  
 
1. A conceptual doubling of current Linn-Benton Loop service is 
feasible in the coming years, with additional service particularly 
focused on lower income/employment-related service expansion 

Work based on the 
TAC’s recommendation.  
 
Chair Brauner will take 
the funding discussion 
to the CAMPO Policy 
Board and along with 
staff will take to Loop 
Partners.  
 
Staff was requested to 
verify if $56 thousand 
would be sufficient 
funds to accomplish the 
requested study.  
 
Staff was requested to 
look for grants through 
ODOT that could be 
applied for. 

Attachment A

2



(consistent with Legislative Assembly discussions and HB2017 
provisions); 
 
2. The doubling of service could potentially be funded by equal HB 
2017 allocations from Linn County and Benton County, in the 
possible range of approximately $300,000 annually from each 
county. Consistent with Legislative Assembly discussions, existing 
allocations from AAMPO, CAMPO, OSU and LBCC would need to 
continue (the Legislative Assembly expects an expansion of public 
transit service; and does not expect HB 2017 funds to “fill behind” 
current resources). 
 
3. To provide policy makers with information to support this 
potential large increase in funding (as well as develop a proposal 
for review by ODOT/OTC) the Linn-Benton Loop service analysis 
proposal should be revisited. The existing Linn-Benton Loop 
routes/schedules were developed more than a decade ago and no 
longer provide the most efficient delivery of transit service, let 
alone the efficient delivery of a dramatically increased service. 
Simply expanding on “more of the same” is not a solid basis for 
our service analysis. 
 
4. A “mini-transit development plan” (similar to the recently 
developed TDP in Lebanon and a smaller scale than the Albany 
TDP currently nearing completion), which includes specific 
recommendations regarding routes and schedules is what is 
needed. This is a technical report that requires specific skill sets 
including route/scheduling planning. The estimated cost is 
$50,000-60,000 (less than the Lebanon plan and more than the 
Albany plan). The Albany and Lebanon plans were developed by 
consultants and we believe it would be appropriate for this task as 
well.  

Attachment A

3



 
TAC Recommendation: 
The TAC voted on a motion, and agreed to forward this 
information and recommendation to the Linn-Benton Loop Board. 
If the Board supports the development of a small-scale transit 
development study for the Loop, the TAC recommends that the 
Board request the AAMPO Board and the CAMPO Board to 
consider funding the plan on an equal basis, in the amount of 
$28,000 each.  
 
Ali Bonakdar reminded members that at its last meeting, the 
Board had requested looking into a reliable funding source for the 
Linn-Benton Loop. He stated that the Board needs to set priorities 
and decide if it will work on the SOW or put its efforts into 
searching for a reliable funding source. Additionally, he noted that 
CAMPO received Planning 5303 funds and 5307 funds. The 
Planning funds have been cut, as now the larger MPO’s are 
receiving larger amounts and smaller MPO’s a lesser amount of 
funds. This means, CAMPO is having to dip into its carryover 
funds. Meaning, CAMPO will be in a tight position in the near 
future. However, Bonakdar expressed that the SOW is important 
and it is ideal to look into how to fund it, including CAMPO’s 
share. He noted the request would need to be taken to the 
CAMPO Policy Board.  
 
Chair Brauner noted that if the request is to position the Loop to 
be prepared for anticipated funds, it would be appropriate for the 
Loop Board to support the study.  
 
Commissioner Roger Nyquist requested a dollar amount 
projection of what the transit funds with HB 2017 will be. He stated 
that it is important to do things right the first time and that if the 

Attachment A

4



group felt the study would be appropriate, Linn County would be 
willing to support it financially.  

6.  Transit District 
Discussion Follow Up 

Warnock noted that this would be addressed with the 
development of a SOW for the concept of the Transit 
Development Plan. Members agreed.  

This will be addressed 
through the TDP of the 
Service Analysis Study. 

7.  Memorandum of 
Agreement (MOA) 

Staff has begun pulling information for the MOA and is hoping 
to have it finalized by the Fall. Staff is looking for guidance 
from the Board on whether the MOA needs to include all the 
partners on a single MOA signed by all participants, or does 
there need to be single MOA’s between each party and the 
Loop Board. There is a lack of clarity due to the way the 
original IGA was written.  
 
Members discussed the MOA. It was unclear as to why an 
MOA was needed if an IGA was in place and through that IGA 
the City of Albany had been given authority to continue to 
conduct operations of the Loop. Barry Hoffman noted that it 
had been questioned whether the City continued to bill OSU or 
if the Board would now be billing.  
 
Chair Brauner clarified that at the beginning of the Loop Board 
formation it had been stated that the operations would 
continue as they had in the past. However, it is now time to 
discuss how to continue moving forward and that the MOA 
should address those questions. Chair Brauner went on to 
suggest that there be individual MOA’s between each 
participant. He suggested that funding, data flow (between 
entities), and expectations of communications be included in 
the MOA’s.  

Staff to develop MOA’s 
between each 
participant and the 
Board. MOA’s should 
include funding, data 
flow, and expectations 
of communications.  

8.  Budget and Ridership 
Reports 

Hoffman reviewed the Budget and Ridership reports. He noted 
enrollment and gas prices have effected ridership. However, the 

 

Attachment A

5



year ended well. In July, the first month of the new fiscal year (an 
off month) there was a higher ridership than the prior year.  

9.  Webpage Update Emma Chavez advised that the Loop Website had been activated 
under the City of Albany and the old webpage under COG will be 
removed. All agenda’s and minutes for the Board and TAC will be 
posted on the new site. Social media information may be found at 
the bottom of the webpage. A link to the new site will be emailed 
out to members.  

  

10.  Next Meeting and 
Future Agenda Items 

The Chair advised that the next meeting date for the Board is 
Tuesday, November 28th. If the Board needs to meet prior to 
November, a special meeting may be called to order.  
 
Staff advised that information on HB 2017 Rulemaking may be 
made available to members via email as soon as the information 
is made available.   

 

11.  Other Business There was no other business.   

12.  Adjourn Meeting adjourned at 4:09 pm.  

 

Attachment A

6



 

DRAFT 
 

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG)  
Corvallis Area MPO and Albany Area MPO 

Request for Proposals 
Linn-Benton Loop Service Development Plan 

 
Proposals will be accepted until Day/Date/Time 
 
Proposals must be delivered to Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 
Attention:. __________________ 1400 Queen Avenue SE #201, Albany Oregon 
97322.  
 
Proposals may be forwarded by email to:   
________(Name)______________, 
______________(Title)__________________ 
Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 
Community and Economic Development 
1400 SE Queen Ave, Suite 205 
Albany OR, 97322 
541-924-XXXX Direct 541-967-4651 fax 
(email) | www.ocwcog.org 
 
or by U.S. Mail or hand delivered to OCWCOG, attention 
_____________________,  at 1400 Queen Avenue SE, Suite 201 Albany 
Oregon 97322 as long as they are received by OCWCOG before the deadline.  
 
(Note: We would recommend the contact be Emma Chavez, as the 
administrative support person for the Loop Board and TAC, but that would be the 
COG’s decision.) 
 
Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments, in accordance with the 
provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and subsequent regulations, 
hereby notifies all interested parties that it will affirmatively ensure that all 
contractors will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to 
this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color 
or national origin.  
 
Background 
 
The Linn-Benton Loop has provided transit service to residents of Benton County 
and Linn County for more than three decades. The City of Albany has provided 
the transit service and previously administered federal, state and local grants 
under the general guidance of a Linn-Benton Loop Commission. In 2016 a new 
Governing Board was established for the Linn-Benton Loop. Governing Board 

Attachment B

1

http://www.ocwcog.org/


members reflect the six primary funding partners for the Loop service, as noted 
below. The Corvallis Area MPO (CAMPO) and the Albany Area MPO (AAMPO) 
staff the Governing Board and administer the Linn-Benton Loop’s transit service; 
with the City of Albany serving as the operations contractor for the transit service. 
The Governing Board established a Technical Advisory Committee to advise the 
Governing Board and staff regarding operations and performance of the Linn-
Benton Loop transit service. 

The Linn-Benton Loop operates six days a week with service between Corvallis 
and Albany. The current route and schedule was essentially developed more 
than a decade ago. In 2013 an “Express Service” was developed and provides 
service five days a week, during school terms, between Corvallis and Linn-
Benton Community College in Albany. A very important element of the “Express 
Service” is the connection with East Linn County, served by the Linn Shuttle with 
a connection to the Linn-Benton Loop at Linn-Benton Community College. 

The 2016-2017 ridership was 110,000 including approximately 40,000 Oregon 
State University student/staff/faculty rides and 29,000 Linn-Benton Community 
College student/staff/faculty rides. The 2015-2016 ridership was 112,000. The 
ridership between 2011-2012 and 2014-2015 ranged between 118,000 and 
130,000. 

Operational funding is provided through the Linn-Benton Loop partner agencies, 
and consists primarily of  Federal Section 5307 funds (allocated by the Corvallis 
Area MPO and the Albany Area MPO); Oregon State University funds; Linn-
Benton Community College funds; state transit funds allocated by Benton County 
and Linn County; Federal Section 5310 funds; and ridership fares. Capital 
funding has, in the past decade, included Federal Section 5339 funds and federal 
stimulus (ARRA) funds, with local match funds provided by the Linn-Benton Loop 
partners.  

With the approval of Oregon HB 2017 (State Transportation Improvement Fund) 
the operational funding for the Linn-Benton Loop could, conceptually, double in 
the near future, as STIF revenues begin to accrue beginning in 2018-2019.  

The Linn-Benton Loop Governing Board requested the Corvallis MPO, the 
Albany Area MPO and the Linn-Benton Loop Technical Advisory Committee to 
review service needs and potential opportunities to increase transit service to 
meet these needs. Although this service analysis must include Oregon State 
University and Linn-Benton Community College, a primary focus will be the 
unmet needs and potential service opportunities of the general public; with an 
emphasis on residents with low income, consistent with HB 2017. 

Objective 

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (CAMPO/AAMPO) invites 
proposals from contractors to study ridership needs and opportunities in Corvallis 
and Albany that could be addressed by increased Linn-Benton Loop service; 

Attachment B

2



 

review current service schedule strengths and deficiencies; and develop a 
recommended transit service delivery plan for the Linn-Benton Loop.  
 
The desired product is a practical, short-term operations roadmap focused on 
routes and scheduling, at a sufficiently detailed level to be useful for project plan 
requirements envisioned to be required under HB 2017 rulemaking. It is 
envisioned that the road map will be used for up to five years; with a subsequent 
update developed which will include a comprehensive assessment of the delivery 
of the improved transit services by the Linn-Benton Loop and other transit 
programs supported with HB 2017 funds.    
 
Summary 
 
It is important to note the long list of transportation plans that have either been 
completed in the past few years or are currently being developed. These plans 
include: Update of Corvallis Area MPO Regional Transportation Plan; (Initial) 
Albany Area MPO Regional Transportation Plan; Corvallis Transportation System 
Plan; Benton County Transportation System Plan; Albany Transportation System 
Plan; Linn County Transportation System Plan; Benton County Coordinated 
Human Services-Public Transportation Plan; Linn County Coordinated Human 
Services-Public Transportation Plan; and Albany Transit Development Plan. 
 
It is anticipated these documents will provide a substantial foundation for the 
Linn-Benton Loop Service Plan. The primary need is to develop specific 
route/schedule recommendations to address the public transit needs of the 
general public between Corvallis and Albany; while continuing to address the 
public transit needs of Oregon State and Linn-Benton Community College 
students and staff.   
 
Longer-term planning and policy goals for the Linn-Benton Loop system, such as 
might be included in a transit development plan, are not within the scope of this 
project.  If it appears necessary in the future to develop such a transit 
development plan, this may be addressed through a separate RFP at a future 
time.  
 
Project Tasks 
 
Task 1: Coordination with OCWCOG CAMPO/AAMPO staff (“COG”) and the 
Linn-Benton Loop Technical Advisory Committee (“TAC”) to collaborate on 
and to guide tasks 
 

• Contractor will work with COG staff and the TAC to refine the work plan 
and develop a legal agreement. 

 

• During the active phases of the project contractor will check-in with COG 
staff 2-5 times a month to discuss and collaborate on tasks. This may be 
in person, or by phone or email.  

Attachment B

3



 

• At least once per month, per a schedule to be mutually determined, 
contractor will meet or teleconference with COG staff and members of a 
TAC workgroup to provide a project update, identify and resolve issues, 
and seek clarification and direction on project-related matters. A brief 
written agenda and simple action/decision minutes will be provided.  

 

• Work with COG staff to obtain and review all related public transit 
plans/demographic information/transit ridership studies/other materials.  

 

• Work with COG and the TAC to efficiently complete all tasks.  
 

 
Task 2: Existing Conditions Memo 
 

• Describe the existing public transit programs in Corvallis and Albany, 
which have or potentially offer connections to the Linn-Benton Loop. This 
section should be brief and focus on connectivity aspects. 
 

• Identify those areas or sections of Linn and Benton Counties which are 
presently not served or are currently under-served by public transit and 
could potentially be served by an expansion of Linn-Benton Loop service 
or by increased connections of other transit services within the Linn-
Benton Loop area. Areas of residents with low income and/or areas where 
transportation is a barrier to employment must specifically be identified.  

 

• Review and describe recent on-board surveys for the Linn-Benton Loop, 
Linn Shuttle, Corvallis Transit System and Albany Transit System.  
Determine if additional on-board survey information is required.  
 

• If required, and if authorized under contractor’s agreement and so directed 
by COG, work with COG, TAC, and local partners to develop and conduct 
the survey. In its response to this RFP the Contractor should provide 
a separate estimate of the cost of an on-board survey.  
 

Task 3: Analysis of Transit Needs 
 

• A key component of the Linn-Benton Loop Service Plan is the transit 
needs assessment of potential riders. The Linn-Benton Governing Board, 
and the Benton County Board of Commissioners and Linn County Board 
of Commissioners, which will allocate HB 2017 funds, need to better 
understand the needs of residents within the Linn-Benton Loop potential 
service area who currently do not use public transit, and if/how improved 
transit service could address their transportation needs. (This includes the 
potential area served by better connections between local transit 
programs and the Linn-Benton Loop.) 

 

Attachment B

4



 

• In responding to this RFP, Contractor should generally describe how it will 
use existing demographic data, data from other current transit plans, 
college and university class schedules, community outreach efforts, and 
other means to develop and assess information about transit needs for the 
general public. The needs of low income residents, including employment 
needs, is particularly important in addressing the requirements of HB 
2017. 

 

• Other than the review of published class time schedules and staff work 
schedules for transit scheduling purposes, it is anticipated that a wider 
outreach to OSU and LBCC students/staff/faculty will not be the primary 
responsibility of the contractor. The two colleges may decide to survey 
their students/staff/faculty. If so, the contractor will need to work with the 
two colleges, provide limited consultation as requested on data needs and 
survey design, review the information collected by the two colleges, and 
incorporate the findings into the Linn-Benton Loop Service Plan. 

 
Task 4: Transit Service Delivery Plan 
 

• The development of a transit service delivery plan is the most important 
element of the Linn-Benton Loop Service Plan. The existing 
route/schedule (other than the “Express Service) was developed more 
than a decade ago and does not well serve the general public, and may 
not adequately address the scheduling needs of the two colleges.  
 

• The Linn-Benton Loop Governing Board wants a fresh look to review Linn-
Benton Loop service options which (1) continue to serve the needs of 
OSU and LBCC students/staff/faculty; and (2) provide realistic, cost-
effective and expanded transit options for the general public with an 
emphasis on low income residents. In doing so, it is important to retain the 
character of the Loop as an FTA-designated commuter bus service.  

 

• Contractor will develop service options which include routes, stop 
locations, route-length travel times, days of service, hours of operation, 
frequency of service, and vehicles required. It is very important to develop 
the service options in coordination with the existing routes/schedules of 
the Linn Shuttle, Albany Transit System and Corvallis Transit System. 
Where applicable, recommendations should be made where minor 
modifications to these routes/schedules might improve connectivity. 

 

• Contractor will provide cost estimates for transit operations (driver, fuel, 
maintenance, etc.) and capital vehicle expenses, for the above service 
options. These should be at a sufficient level of refinement to be used in 
developing project plan budgets including information needed for HB 2017 
requirements. Options should be presented in increments within a total 
budget range of approximately $600,000.  

 

Attachment B

5



 

Estimated Project Timeline  
 
The estimated project timeline shows elapsed time from the start of project, 
following execution of an agreement with the selected contractor. Actual dates 
can be determined in discussion with contractor, COG, and TAC. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultant Budget:  
 
The consultant budget for this project is estimated to be $40,000 - $50,000.  
 
 
Guidelines for Content of Proposal: 
 

• Name of and overview of contractor’s firm.  
 

• Names(s) and contact information for the contractor. 
 

• Project team members and their qualifications. It is expected that the 
personnel listed will serve as the team members assigned to this project.  

 

• Statement of firm qualifications including successful completion of similar 
tasks, with particular emphasis on the development of transit service 
routes/schedules. Please include names and contact information for at 
least three professional references for whom similar work has been 
performed. 

 

• Since this project utilizes Federal funds, the Contractor must follow all 
applicable Federal laws and regulations when performing the work. These 
provisions will be a part of the eventual legal agreement. 

 

Attachment B

6



 

For additional information contact:  
 
Phil Warnock 
Community Development Director 
1400 SE Queen Ave, Suite 205 
Albany OR, 97322 

pwarnock@ocwcog.org 
541-924-8474 
 
 

Attachment B

7

mailto:pwarnock@ocwcog.org


Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

Between 

Linn-Benton Loop Policy Board 

And  

CITY OF ALBANY 

This MOA is made and entered into execution by and between the Linn-Benton Loop Board, 

hereinafter known as the Board, and the City of Albany, hereinafter known as Albany.   

SECTION 1.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The purpose of this MOA is to formalize agreements related to funding, operations, and ongoing 

expectations for continuing the Loop service between the Board and Albany.  

SECTION 2.  Linn-Benton Loop Board 

A. Authorize Albany to accept Federal Section 5310 funds related to the operation of the Loop.

B. Review, comment, and offer recommendations, or suggestions, on the annual budget of

the Loop.

C. Review and set partnership contribution amounts for funding of the Loop and make

recommendations to Albany regarding routes and schedules.

D. Seek, identify, and recommend new funding sources for the Loop.

E. Review and make recommendations regarding level of service, operation improvements,

and performance of the Loop.

F. Sponsor and administer the development and implementation of plans, programs,

projects, and studies for the Loop.

SECTION 3.   City of Albany Responsibilities 

A. As the transit provided, accept and manage Federal Section 5310 funds for the operation

of the Loop.

B. Maintain the Loop service according to policy direction provided by the Board.

C. Responsible for budget, appropriation, day to day operations, and all other actions

permitted by law and required to perform the Loop service.

D. Provide quarterly budget and ridership reports at Loop Board and TAC meetings.

SECTION 4.   PROVISIONS 

A. Contract Period:  This agreement shall be effective upon signing by both parties and shall

terminate on June 30, 2018, unless this agreement is hereafter modified in writing.

Attachment C

1



B. Amendments:  Any amendment to this agreement shall be made in writing to the Board at

least thirty (30) days before the Board may make a decision.

C. Termination:  This agreement may be terminated by either party.  Suspension in whole or in

part of this agreement by either party will require ninety (90) days written notice to the other

party.

D. Discrimination:  The parties shall not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, sex,

color, age, source of income, sexual orientation, or national origin in the performance of

this contract.

E. Indemnification:  To the extent permitted by law, each party shall indemnify and hold

harmless the other from any suits or damages caused by the negligent actions or omission

in connection or association with the performance of this agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in duplicate. 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 

Hal Bruner First and Last Name 

Linn-Benton Loop Board Chair City of Albany 

1400 Queen Ave SE Ste 201 Street Address 

Albany, OR. 97322 City, State Zip 

Date:_______________________ Date:______________________ 

Attachment C

2



Attachment D1



Attachment D1



Attachment D1



Linn-Benton Loop
Weekday Ridership

Regular Loop plus LOOP Express
2016 -2017

MONTH 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 2,794 3,260 3,237 3,319 3,692 3,975 6,391 4,709 4,781 5,911 6,036 6,045 6,106 5,512 3,606 4,223 617 17.1%

Aug. 2,859 2,249 3,143 3,663 3,912 4,140 5,245 3,599 4,261 6,502 5,977 5,331 4,798 4,562 3,430 4,174 744 16.3%

Sept. 2,425 2,812 3,526 4,240 4,920 4,992 5,614 5,125 6,442 8,303 7,293 4,621 6,751 5,228 6,314 6,418 104 2.0%

Oct. 6,973 8,460 7,934 10,139 11,093 11,539 14,446 13,013 13,527 16,046 16,490 16,516 18,648 15,384 13,712 13,861 149 1.0%

Nov. 4,800 5,342 6,705 8,422 8,681 8,640 9,643 10,056 11,917 13,440 12,245 12,095 11,667 11,153 11,557 -11,557 -103.6%

Dec. 3,178 3,412 3,145 3,717 3,338 3,310 5,646 5,393 5,625 5,598 4,600 6,418 7,496 5,860 4,163 -4,163 -71.0%

Jan. 6,021 5,895 6,530 7,684 8,204 9,075 10,557 11,888 12,667 12,462 14,039 13,599 13,391 11,979 10,439 -10,439 -87.1%

Feb. 6,666 6,175 5,868 7,990 8,299 9,152 9,589 10,608 11,415 13,078 13,188 10,736 12,417 10,205 11,126 -11,126 -109.0%

March 4,736 5,714 5,907 6,801 7,096 7,232 7,830 9,314 10,529 10,733 9,846 9,521 10,281 10,350 9,270 -9,270 -89.6%

April 6,766 6,836 7,172 7,886 8,952 10,437 11,054 11,963 13,566 14,659 14,149 13,926 13,892 11,548 11,365 -11,365 -98.4%

May 5,902 6,206 6,764 8,885 9,237 9,753 9,219 10,487 13,261 14,507 13,320 12,161 11,885 10,555 11,700 -11,700 -110.8%

June 3,937 3,955 4,185 5,474 5,575 6,927 6,201 6,225 7,922 8,604 7,202 7,311 7,461 5,883 9,616 -9,616 -163.5%

Sub Total* 57,057 60,316 64,116 78,220 82,999 89,172 101,435 102,380 115,913 129,843 124,385 118,280 124,793 108,219 106,298 -1,921 -1.8%

Saturday 0 0 0 0 1,938 2,643 2,931 3,325 3,804 4,459 4,108 3,977 3,923 3,376

Grand Total 57,057 60,316 64,116 78,220 84,937 91,815 104,366 105,705 119,717 134,302 128,493 122,257 128,716 111,595 106,298

*Reg Loop and Express Loop

**Try Transit Week Occurs in October

L
o

o
p

 p
lu

s
 l

o
o

p
 e

x
p

re
s

s

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Loop Annual Ridership

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL



Linn-Benton Loop
LBCC PASS PROGRAM

2016 - 2017

MONTH 02-03 03-04 04-05 05-06 06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18  +/- Ratio

July 792 1,124 1,056 856 818 1,166 1,587 1,134 1,384 1,419 1,309 1,262 1,244 821 619 684 -202 -24.6%

Aug. 737 422 706 731 732 981 1,146 573 791 1,322 1,158 940 911 1,008 577 591 -431 -42.8%

Sept. 454 777 960 1,774 1,741 1,668 1,259 1,489 2,087 2,279 2,169 737 1,588 1,133 1,542 1,297 409 36.1%

Oct. 4,155 6,251 4,411 5,373 6,314 6,374 7,050 6,695 6,574 7,500 7,074 4,947 7,217 5,789 3,950 3,991 -1,839 -31.8%

Nov. 2,921 3,396 3,564 4,598 4,892 4,544 4,692 5,376 5,655 6,169 5,599 3,719 5,092 2,945 3,356 411 14.0%

Dec. 1,326 1,706 1,071 1,175 1,151 773 2,135 1,873 1,746 1,521 1,114 1,489 2,547 1,297 1,076 -221 -17.0%

Jan. 3,500 4,046 3,538 3,810 4,365 4,500 4,949 5,795 6,187 5,098 5,913 3,936 5,381 4,276 2,883 -1,393 -32.6%

Feb. 3,290 4,190 3,366 4,342 4,719 4,582 4,467 5,150 5,143 5,746 5,836 2,983 4,678 3,043 4,164 1,121 36.8%

March 2,407 3,320 2,877 3,456 3,569 3,253 3,441 4,250 4,675 4,426 4,036 2,489 3,613 3,448 2,379 -1,069 -31.0%

April 4,205 4,419 3,826 4,248 4,772 5,350 5,121 5,855 7,049 6,234 6,063 3,788 4,973 4,348 3,037 -1,311 -30.2%

May 3,689 3,954 3,658 4,998 4,857 4,962 4,188 5,443 6,512 6,174 5,574 3,549 2,946 2,902 3,290 388 13.4%

June 1,582 1,707 1,310 2,055 2,249 2,798 2,124 2,422 2,632 2,703 2,265 2,046 1,547 1,104 1,586 482 43.7%

TOTAL 29,058 35,312 30,343 37,416 40,179 40,951 42,159 46,055 50,435 50,591 48,110 31,885 41,737 32,114 28,459 9,852

Sat 0 0 0 0% 232 356 535 683 791 760 627 594 525 425

Grand Total 29,058 35,312 30,343 37,416 40,411 41,307 42,694 46,738 51,226 51,351 48,737 32,479 42,262 32,539 28,459

 5 days averaged; passes not counted during Try Transit Week.

Sept 2002:  College classes began approximately 2 weeks later than usual.

July 2003:  Cut 4 runs.

Jan. 2004: 2 snow days + MLK day.

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

15-16

16-17

17-18

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

LBCC ANNUAL RIDERSHIP

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL



Linn-Benton Loop
OSU PASS PROGRAM

2016-2017

MONTH 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 153 467 1,126 849 1,786 1,001 837 1,301 1,652 1,783 1,826 1,366 970 873 -396 -29.0%

August 564 590 854 869 1,262 662 849 1,390 1,582 1,439 1,337 1,202 988 880 -214 -17.8%

Sept 532 1,007 1,171 1,089 1,217 1,191 1,685 2,250 2,140 1,242 2,033 1,875 2,428 2,236 553 29.5%

Oct 1,068 1,866 2,278 2,308 3,962 3,841 4,295 5,071 5,717 6,213 7,959 6,872 5,370 5,802 -1,502 -21.9%

Nov 1,073 1,648 1,870 1,863 2,629 2,720 3,971 4,237 4,020 4,448 5,190 4,381 4,435 54 1.2%

Dec 488 730 705 719 1,379 1,259 1,587 1,297 1,239 2,035 2,770 1,893 1,343 -550 -29.1%

Jan 1,068 2,254 1,607 2,175 3,345 3,418 4,099 3,749 4,711 5,084 5,658 5,399 3,934 -1,465 -27.1%

Feb 975 1,615 1,623 2,092 3,108 3,046 3,499 4,123 4,619 3,949 5,223 4,890 4,991 101 2.1%

Mar 832 1,230 1,320 1,546 2,185 2,553 2,986 3,080 3,111 3,206 4,235 4,345 3,505 -840 -19.3%

Apr 1,064 1,577 1,885 2,227 3,355 3,476 4,191 4,943 4,992 5,005 6,259 4,864 4,476 -388 -8.0%

May 1,029 1,822 2,045 2,238 2,842 2,942 3,529 4,763 4,443 4,362 4,647 4,038 4,540 502 12.4%

June 661 1,102 1,168 1,621 1,654 1,335 1,931 2,440 2,036 2,588 2,442 1,636 2,107 471 28.8%

Sub Total 9,507 15,908 17,652 19,596 28,724 27,444 33,459 38,644 40,262 41,354 49,579 42,761 39,087 3,674 -15.9%

Saturday 0 0% 502 400 592 600 639 834 814 743 771 771

Grand Total 9,507 15,908 18,154 19,996 29,316 28,044 34,098 39,478 41,076 42,097 50,350 43,532 39,087

July 2004: Begin pass program

Try Transit

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000
LOOP OSU Annual Ridership

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL



Linn-Benton Loop
HEWLETT PACKARD 

PASS PROGRAM
2016-2017

MONTH 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 336 501 540 551 580 627 1,091 496 532 766 819 592 599 458 373 480 107 28.7%

Aug. 423 370 525 591 655 728 954 512 554 921 699 733 518 342 435 552 117 26.9%

Sept. 405 385 463 712 460 656 949 536 598 802 607 699 688 375 420 444 24 6.4%

Oct. 467 412 551 708 524 666 847 619 544 950 755 700 696 420 444 528 84 20.0%

Nov. 313 262 550 528 520 709 648 547 520 732 587 553 476 328 365 -365 -111.3%

Dec. 307 262 377 359 385 453 473 313 401 520 398 378 406 272 259 -259 -95.2%

Jan. 476 363 529 570 526 700 563 631 570 842 693 733 557 371 394 -394 -106.2%

Feb. 500 388 480 463 499 638 443 514 583 812 723 531 535 440 374 -374 -85.0%

March 572 432 695 465 595 819 448 617 800 858 684 635 570 438 444 -444 -101.4%

April 494 477 707 437 577 852 550 528 685 933 664 602 515 364 527 -527 -144.8%

May 407 547 714 605 744 775 527 533 724 1,046 688 535 459 381 568 -568 -149.1%

June 409 666 625 612 656 1,063 645 490 848 1,017 666 516 488 425 474 -474 -111.5%

Sub Total 5,109 5,065 6,756 6,601 6,721 8,686 8,138 6,336 7,359 10,199 7,983 7,207 6,507 4,614 5,077 463 9.1%

Saturday 0 0 0 0 5 25 6 11 6 29 18 4 5 5

Grand Total 5,109 5,065 6,756 6,601 6,726 8,711 8,144 6,347 7,365 10,228 8,001 7,211 6,512 4,619

July 2003:  Cut 4 runs.  Sept. 

2003: Runs restored.

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

HP Loop Annual Ridership

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL



MONTH 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 95 91 105 196 245 210 105 7 53 46 657.1%

Aug. 42 102 123 191 222 172 129 25 54 29 116.0%

Sept. 54 95 127 225 159 153 133 53 66 13 24.5%

Oct. 26 57 160 249 207 185 138 43 61 18 41.9%

Nov. 14 45 48 178 162 147 147 98 37 -37 -100.0%

Dec. 17 58 54 134 124 129 178 110 35 -35 -100.0%

Jan. 8 45 66 169 188 206 102 121 28 -28 -100.0%

Feb. 18 53 33 202 160 161 118 103 48 -48 -100.0%

March 15 57 59 220 160 189 99 84 22 -22 -100.0%

April 82 58 116 194 204 162 117 34 25 -25 -100.0%

May 57 72 125 235 172 165 99 22 41 -41 -100.0%

June 65 82 112 239 130 180 141 22 51 -51 -100.0%

Sub Total 276 687 958 2,086 2,161 2,172 1,721 1,099 415 -181

Saturday 3 2 5 16 34 14 11 11

Grand Total 279 689 963 2,102 2,195 2,186 1,732 1,110 415

*This does not include the Saturday Loop.

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Good Sam Annual Loop Ridership

0

50

100

150

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18



Linn-Benton Loop
Saturday Service

2017-2018
MONTH 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 93 147 160 250 356 252 262 274 195 315 291 -24 -7.6%

Aug. 90 245 241 227 235 339 267 400 353 325 219 262 43 19.6%

Sept. 185 229 227 209 294 323 494 324 317 247 259 388 129 49.8%

Oct. 212 171 239 303 349 497 321 307 436 375 407 310 -97 -23.8%

Nov. 165 217 334 388 350 366 318 444 346 282 334 -334 -100.0%

Dec. 199 226 184 161 180 353 407 232 244 239 333 -333 -100.0%

Jan. 160 175 358 356 331 354 265 309 344 314 206 -206 -100.0%

Feb. 177 235 235 264 345 369 377 227 298 251 258 -258 -100.0%

March 206 257 232 334 349 399 385 421 342 271 276 -276 -100.0%

April 176 253 242 320 472 337 294 323 295 333 362 -362 -100.0%

May 147 275 251 357 340 367 319 400 403 246 339 -339 -100.0%

June 221 267 241 246 309 399 409 328 271 298 321 -321 -100.0%

Totals 1,938 2,643 2,931 3,325 3,804 4,459 4,108 3,977 3,923 3,376 3,629 1,251 -2,378

Oct. Try Transit Week

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

Saturday Loop 3 Year Ridership

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

2017-18

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL - Saturday 11/27/2017



Linn-Benton Loop

LBCC PASS PROGRAM

Saturday Service 2016-2017

MONTH 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 8 16 18 37 44 56 51 35 19 36 35 -1 -2.8%

Aug. 12 2 30 31 33 48 28 48 42 36 18 30 12 66.7%

Sept. 17 18 31 22 35 44 56 43 35 27 29 48 19 65.5%

Oct. 22 12 23 46 72 66 38 48 56 39 58 62 4 6.9%

Nov. 28 16 50 74 69 75 55 70 57 41 43 -43 -100.0%

Dec. 33 37 50 41 40 84 57 32 37 23 54 -54 -100.0%

Jan. 19 24 74 66 92 69 61 61 43 34 33 -33 -100.0%

Feb. 19 43 48 70 82 68 53 31 45 41 54 -54 -100.0%

March 23 54 50 95 84 72 68 52 40 31 47 -47 -100.0%

April 19 58 53 85 86 63 39 63 52 54 64 -64 -100.0%

May 13 42 58 83 92 45 50 59 48 40 52 -52 -100.0%

June 27 42 52 52 69 82 66 36 35 40 66 -66 -100.0%

Totals 232 356 535 683 791 760 627 594 525 425 554 129 47.2%

Oct. Try Transit Week

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Saturday Loop LBCC Pass 
3 Year Ridership

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

0

500

1000

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL - Saturday



Linn Benton Loop

HP Pass Program

Saturday Service 2017-2018
MONTH 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 2 2 2 1 -1 -50.00%
Aug. 0 0 0 1 0 0 7 0 3 0 2 0 -2 -100.00%

Sept. 1 0 0 3 0 0 2 0 0 2 3 0 -3 -100.00%

Oct. 2 0 0 2 0 1 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

Nov. 0 1 1 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

Dec. 2 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 -2 -100.00%

Jan. 0 5 4 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 -2 -100.00%

Feb. 0 4 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

March 0 6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

April 0 3 0 2 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

May 0 2 1 0 2 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

June 0 1 0 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

Totals 5 25 6 11 6 29 18 4 5 4 11 1 7 0.6363636

Oct. Try Transit Week

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Saturday Loop Annual HP Ridership

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL - Saturday



Linn-Benton Loop

Samaritan Pass Program

Saturday Service 2017-2018

MONTH 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 0 0 2 0 0 3 2 2 2 0 -2 #DIV/0!

Aug. 0 0 0 0 4 4 1 6 1 0 -1 #DIV/0!

Sept. 0 0 0 0 3 0 1 6 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

Oct. 0 0 2 0 3 2 2 3 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

Nov. 1 0 0 2 3 3 0 10 4 -4 #DIV/0!

Dec. 0 0 0 3 3 1 0 1 4 -4 #DIV/0!

Jan. 1 0 1 5 3 0 0 1 0 0 #DIV/0!

Feb. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 #DIV/0!

March 1 0 0 4 5 0 0 3 0 0 #DIV/0!

April 0 0 0 0 4 1 2 4 0 0 #DIV/0!

May 0 0 0 1 5 0 2 3 2 -2 #DIV/0!

June 0 2 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 #DIV/0!

Totals 3 2 5 16 34 14 11 41 13 0 -13 #DIV/0!

Oct. Try Transit Week

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Saturday Loop Sam Annual Ridership

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL - Saturday



Linn Benton Loop

OSU Pass Program

Saturday Service 2017-2018

MONTH 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  +/- Ratio

July 19 35 27 21 37 38 40 34 39 43 35 -8 -18.6%

Aug. 15 37 46 28 47 37 45 75 42 58 23 41 18 78.3%

Sept. 50 23 30 32 69 62 123 72 64 41 33 72 39 118.2%

Oct. 48 24 44 59 65 125 89 51 80 50 66 73 7 10.6%

Nov. 52 24 50 53 78 65 54 98 92 38 47 -47 -100.0%

Dec. 45 30 27 32 18 47 74 43 52 37 54 -54 -100.0%

Jan. 69 28 89 92 59 68 50 71 61 71 35 -35 -100.0%

Feb. 64 36 48 51 62 69 70 37 55 10 54 -54 -100.0%

March 45 40 43 62 48 81 98 78 80 66 57 -57 -100.0%

April 43 28 52 57 81 60 61 72 72 61 61 -61 -100.0%

May 25 53 73 83 60 91 52 48 88 35 53 -53 -100.0%

June 46 58 55 24 31 92 60 58 51 42 55 -55 -100.0%

Totals 502 400 592 600 639 834 814 743 771 548 581 221 33 5.7%

Oct.  Try Transit Week

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LBL - Saturday



Linn-Benton Loop

Loop Express
2017-2018

MONTH 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
July 754 822 702 578

Aug. 569 665 730 491

Sept. 317 987 1207 842

Oct. 2,180 3,259     2365 2227 2029

Nov. 1,892 2,019     1606 1895

Dec. 745 1,125     827 727

Jan. 2,180 2,221     1869 1682

Feb. 1,584 1,811     1790 1621

Mar 1,334 1,450     1519 1292

April 2,167 2,106     1847 1608

May 1,779 1,819     1554 1687

June 941 1,156     923

TOTAL 14,802 18,606 16,774 15,378 3,940

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Loop 3 Year Ridership Total

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LP EXPRESS



 Loop Express

LBCC Program

2017-2018
MONTH 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Jul 685        382 242 275

Aug 665        280 260 237

Sept 566        458 655 449

Oct 1,475 2,133     1488 1489 1245

Nov 1,315 1,395     1019 1307

Dec 433 691        425 325

Jan 1,342 1,525     1174 1097

Feb 964 1,178     1137 971

Mar 791 908        843 772

Apr 1,261 1,333     1201 1364

May 1,116 1,092     919 1086

June 509 604        376

TOTAL 9,206 12,775   9,702   9,568   

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LP EXPRESS



Loop express

OSU Program
2016-2017MONTHLinn-Benton Loop2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

July 328 245 107 95

Aug 329 202 126 90

Sept 189 267 183 188

Oct 524 737 596 378 451

Nov 420 423 429 286

Dec 180 247 171 101

Jan 590 573 459 338

Feb 447 432 392 336

Mar 356 357 371 239

Apr 620 548 410 316

May 481 480 326 269

June 242 256 133

TOTAL 3,860 4,899   4001 2679

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LP EXPRESS



MONTH 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

July 42 0 0 14

Aug 73 1 26 19

Sept 27 2 19 12

Oct 28 3 23 21

Nov 17 0 16

Dec 47 3 15

Jan 12 2 22

Feb 25 1 1 19

Mar 30 0 3 21

Apr 27 2 6 21

May 30 0 4 21

June 25 1 1

TOTAL 137 250 26 203 66

Loop Express
Samaritan Program

2016-2017

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

F:\CED\Planning\Projects\Linn-Benton Loop\1Meetings\Loop Board\17-11-28 Loop Board\17-18 LP EXPRESS


	17-11-28 Agenda
	Attachment A -17-08-29 Draft Minutes
	Attachment B - LBLoop DRAFT Svc Devel Plan SOW - UPDATED
	Attachment C - MOA Board and Albany (Albany Edits)
	Attachment D1 - LBL Exp and Revenue Reports
	Attachment D2 - LBL Ridership Report
	17-18 LBL
	17-18 LBL - Saturday
	17-18 LP EXPRESS




